
IN THE CHANCERY COURT FOR THE STATE OF TENNESSEE 
TWENTIETH JUDICIAL DISTRICT, DAVIDSON COUNTY 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ex rel. HERBERT 

H. SLATERY III, in his official capacity as the 

Attorney General and Reporter of Tennessee 

and ROBERT J. MARTINEAU, JR., 
Commissioner of the Tennessee Department 

of Environment and Conservation, 

V. No. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Plaintiffs, ) 

) 

TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY, ) 

) 
) Defendant. 

  

VERIFIED COMPLAINT 

  

This is an original enforcement action under the Tennessee Solid Waste Disposal Act, as 

amended, Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 68-211-101 to 68-211-124 (SWDA), the Tennessee Water 

Quality Control Act of 1977, as amended, Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 69-3-101 to 69-3-137 (TWQCA), 

and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, against defendant Tennessee Valley 

Authority (TVA) for injunctive relief and the assessment of civil penalties. The plaintiffs seek 

from this Court: (1) a permanent injunction establishing a schedule for the defendant’s 

compliance with the SWDA, the TWQCA, and the rules and regulations thereunder and (2) an 

order and judgment from this Court assessing civil penalties against the defendant for violations 

of the SWDA and the TWQCA in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-117 and § 69-3- 

115, respectively.



On November 10, 2014, the Southern Environmental Law Center (SELC), a non-profit 

public interest law firm, on behalf of its clients the Tennessee Clean Water Network (TCWN), a 

citizens’ group based in Knoxville, Tennessee, and the Tennessee Scenic Rivers Association, a 

citizens’ group based in Nashville, Tennessee, (collectively the Citizens’ Groups) issued a 60- 

day Notice of Violation letter to TVA under the citizen suits provision of the Federal Water 

Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1365, alleging 

multiple violations of the statutory provisions. See 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387. Under 33 U.S.C. § 

1365(b), a citizen suit may not be commenced prior to 60 days after the Citizens’ Groups have 

given notice to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the State, and the alleged 

violator. The notice letter is intended to apprise the government of the alleged violations so that 

the government may take enforcement action, if appropriate. This original enforcement lawsuit 

serves as the State’s commencement of an action in response to the Citizens’ Groups’ 60-day 

Notice of Violation letter. 

JURISIDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action in accordance with the provisions of 

Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 68-211-115, -117 and §§ 69-3-115, -117, respectively. 

2. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 68-211-115, -117(b)(5) and §§ 69-3- 

115(a)(2)(D), -117, venue in this action is proper in the Chancery Court of Davidson County. 

PARTIES 

3. This action is brought in the name of the State of Tennessee by plaintiff, Herbert 

H. Slatery II, in his official capacity as Attorney General and Reporter for the State of 

Tennessee. The Attorney General is the chief law enforcement officer of the State of Tennessee



and of all its departments, commissions, and agencies. Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 8-6-109 and 8-6- 

301. The Attorney General also has authority over litigation involving the public interest. The 

Attorney General’s official residence is in Nashville, Davidson County, Tennessee. 

4, This action is also brought in the name of plaintiff, Robert J. Martineau, Jr., in his 

official capacity as Commissioner of the Tennessee Department of Environment and 

Conservation (TDEC). The Commissioner is charged with implementing the provisions of the 

SWDA under Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 68-211-101 et seq. The TDEC Commissioner is charged by 

Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 68-211-107, -115, -117 with the duty and responsibility to exercise general 

supervision and enforcement of the SWDA and to bring suit for any violations thereunder. The 

Commissioner is charged with implementing the provisions of the TWQCA under Tenn. Code 

Ann, §§ 69-3-101 et seq. The TDEC Commissioner is charged by Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-107 

with the duty and responsibility to exercise general supervision and enforcement of the TWQCA 

and to bring suit for any violations thereunder. The Affidavit and Verification of Christopher S. 

Moran, TDEC’s Civil Enforcement Coordinator, is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 

herein as Exhibit 1. The Commissioner’s official residence is in Nashville, Davidson County, 

Tennessee. 

5. Upon information and belief, defendant Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) is a 

corporate agency and instrumentality of the United States created by the Tennessee Valley 

Authority Act of 1933, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 831-83lee (the TVA Act), with its 

headquarters in Knoxville, Tennessee. TVA operates a facility located at 1499 Steam Plant 

Road, Gallatin, Sumner County, Tennessee 37066, known as the TVA Gallatin Fossil Plant 

(GAF). The GAF is an active coal-fired power plant located on the north bank of the 

Cumberland River, approximately 4.5 miles south-southeast of Gallatin, Tennessee. During all 
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times subject to the provisions of applicable Tennessee statutes and regulations, TVA was a 

“person” as defined by Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-103(6) and § 69-3-103(20). Service of 

process may be made on TVA through William D. Johnson, Chief Operating Officer, 400 West 

Summit Hill Drive, Knoxville, Tennessee 37902. 

TENNESSEE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL ACT 

6. The SWDA represents a comprehensive program designed to regulate solid waste 

disposal in an effort to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, prevent the creation of 

nuisances, conserve the State’s natural resources, and enhance the quality of the State’s 

environment. A stated purpose of the SWDA is to “provide a coordinated statewide program of 

control of solid waste processing and disposal in cooperation with federal, state, and local 

agencies responsible for the prevention, control, or abatement of air, water, and land pollution.” 

Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-102. 

7. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-107, TDEC and TDEC’s 

Commissioner are authorized to exercise general supervision over the operation and maintenance 

of solid waste processing and disposal facilities or sites. 

8. The Commissioner is also empowered to undertake inspections and investigations 

of such facilities, operations, and sites necessary to enforce the provisions of the SWDA. Tenn. 

Code Ann. § 68-211-107(a). 

9. It is a violation of the SWDA to place or deposit any solid waste into the waters 

of the state except in a manner approved by TDEC or the Tennessee Board of Water Quality, Oil 

and Gas. Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-104(1).



10. It is a violation of the SWDA to construct, alter, or operate a solid waste 

processing or disposal facility or site in violation of the rules, regulations, or orders of the 

Commissioner. Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-104(3). 

11. |The Commissioner may seek injunctive relief in the courts through the Office of 

the Attorney General to enforce compliance with the SWDA. Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-115. 
    

Additionally, the Commissioner may institute proceedings in court for the assessment of civil 

penalties of up to seven thousand dollars ($7,000.00) per day for each day of violation against 

persons violating the SWDA or the regulations promulgated thereunder. Tenn. Code Ann. § 68- 

211-117. 

TENNESSEE WATER QUALITY CONTROL ACT 

12. The CWA, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387, requires all entities who 

discharge into the navigable waters of the United States to obtain a National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System (NPDES) permit from EPA in accordance with standards set by the 

Administrator of that agency. 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a). The Administrator may, however, authorize 

a state to issue NPDES permits in her stead if the state permitting program is at least equal to that 

under the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b). TDEC has been authorized by EPA to issue NPDES 

permits in the State of Tennessee. TDEC does so under the TWQCA. 

13. The TWQCA represents a comprehensive program for the protection and 

preservation of the waters of the state and for the regulation of activities affecting discharges 

into, and/or alterations of, the waters of the state. The TWQCA defines these “waters” to 

encompass both surface water and groundwater “except those bodies of water confined to and



retained within the limits of private property, in single ownership that do not combine or effect a 

junction with natural surface or underground waters.” Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-103(44). The 

General Assembly has declared that the waters of Tennessee are the property of the state and are 

held in public trust for the use of the people. Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-102(a). The TWQCA 

further provides that the State, in its exercise of the public trust, has a duty to take necessary 

steps to preserve and protect the public’s right to enjoyment of unpolluted waters. In accordance 

with Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-107, the TDEC Commissioner is authorized to exercise general 

supervision and control over the quality of all state waters as well as administer and enforce all 

laws and regulations relating to the pollution of waters. 

14. The Commissioner is empowered to issue permits authorizing discharges that 

contain the most stringent effluent limitations, conditions, and water quality standards as 

necessary to comply with state and federal laws and regulations. Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-108. 

The Commissioner is also empowered to undertake inspections and investigations as necessary 

to enforce the provisions of the TWQCA. Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-107(5). 

15. It is a violation of the TWQCA for any person to discharge any substance into the 

waters of the state unless such action has been properly authorized, or to cause a substance to be 

placed in a location where such substance, either by itself or in combination with other 

substances, causes pollution as defined under the TWQCA. Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-114(a). 

16. _—‘It is a violation of the TWQCA for any person to alter the physical, chemical, 

radiological, biological, or bacteriological properties of any waters of the state except in 

accordance with the conditions of a valid permit. Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 69-3-108(b)(1) and - 

114(b).



17. It is a violation of the TWQCA for any person to violate the terms or conditions 

of a permit issued under the TWQCA. Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 69-3-108(b)(1) and -114(b). 

18. | The Commissioner may seek injunctive relief in the courts through the Office of 

the Attorney General to enforce compliance with the TWQCA. Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-117. 

Additionally, the Commissioner may institute proceedings in court for the assessment of civil 

penalties of up to ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) per day for each day of violation against 

persons violating the TWQCA or the regulations promulgated thereunder. Tenn. Code Ann. § 

69-3-115. 

FACTS 

NON-REGISTERED SITE #83-1324 

19. The GAF came online in 1959, prior to the enactment of either the SWDA, 

enacted in 1961, or the TWQCA, enacted in 1977. From 1959 to 1970, coal combustion 

byproducts generated through operation of the GAF were sluiced and treated in a series of 

unlined ash ponds located on the western edge of the site. These ponds reached capacity in 1970 

and were closed to use. This former ash management area is now known as Non-Registered Site 

#83-1324 (the NRS). 

20. In 1997, TVA developed a closure plan for the NRS that included provisions to 

carry out groundwater monitoring around the site. TDEC approved the installation of three 

groundwater monitoring wells in 2000. The groundwater at the NRS is classified as a waters of 

the state.



21. In September of 2008, groundwater samples collected from a monitoring well 

contained concentrations of constituents, including beryllium, cadmium, and nickel, detected at 

levels above TDEC’s maximum containment levels (MCLs) for groundwater protection 

standards. 

22. These exceedances triggered a requirement for additional groundwater monitoring 

at the NRS to determine if coal combustion byproducts were currently or could in the future 

impact all groundwater at the GAF or pose a threat to public or private water supplies near the 

NRS. In February of 2009, TDEC gave TVA notice that the NRS was being placed in an 

assessment monitoring program pursuant to Tenn. Comp. R. & Regs. 0400-11-01-.04. 

23. As part of the assessment, TDEC required TVA to develop a Groundwater 

Quality Assessment Plan, which was approved by TDEC in April of 2011. 

24. In September and October of 2011, TVA installed additional groundwater 

monitoring wells and performed other sampling to gather data associated with the NRS, the GAF 

as a whole, and the Cumberland River. 

25. TVA submitted its Groundwater Monitoring Assessment Monitoring Project 

Summary and Risk Assessment Report (the Report) to TDEC on November 25, 2014. The 

Report confirmed exceedances of various primary and secondary MCLs related to coal ash 

byproduct in the area’s groundwater. 

NPDES PERMIT NO. TN0005428 

26. After the NRS reached capacity in 1970, TVA began treating its coal combustion 

byproduct using a series of unlined settling and stilling ponds. This pond complex is located 
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north-northeast of the NRS along the Cumberland River and is comprised of Bottom Ash Pond 

A, Fly Ash Pond E, and Stilling Ponds B, C, and D (the Ash Pond Complex). 

27. Bottom Ash Pond A covers approximately 248 acres with earthen dikes of 20 to 

25 feet. Bottom Ash Pond A discharges through buried pipes into Stilling Pond B, which 

discharges into Stilling Pond C, then to Stilling Pond D, then to the Cumberland River through 

NPDES Permit No. TN0005428 Outfall 001. 

28. Fly Ash Pond E covers approximately 167 acres with earthen dikes of 25 to 30 

feet. Fly Ash Pond E discharges into Stilling Pond C, then to Stilling Pond D, then to the 

Cumberland River through NPDES Permit No. TN0005428 Outfall 001. 

29. | The Cumberland River and its tributaries are waters of the state. The Cumberland 

River is classified for domestic water supply, industrial water supply, fish and aquatic life, 

recreational use, livestock watering and wildlife, and irrigation. Tenn. Comp. R. and Regs. 

0400-40-04-.12. Tenn. Comp. R. & Regs. 0400-40-03-.02(5) provides that since all waters of 

the state are classified for more than one use, the most stringent criteria [for the respective 

classified use] will be applicable. 

30. On June 26, 2012, TDEC’s Division of Water Resources (the Division) issued 

NPDES Permit No. TN0005428 (the NPDES Permit) to TVA authorizing it to discharge effluent 

from the GAF under prescribed limitations to the Cumberland River through several outfalls. 

The permit authorizes TVA to discharge treated effluent including, but not limited to, discharge 

ash transport water, chemical and nonchemical metal cleaning wastes, water treatment plant 

wastes, combustion turbine oil/water separator effluent demineralizer off-spec water and filter



backwash, miscellaneous equipment cooling water, ash sluice water leakage, coal pile and coal 

barge runoff, and storm water runoff through Outfall 001 to the Cumberland River, located at 

mile 240.5. Outfall 001 is the only authorized discharge point for treated wastewater from the 

Ash Pond Complex to the Cumberland River. TVA’s permit is currently scheduled to expire on 

May 31, 2017. 

31. |The NPDES Permit imposes daily maximum and monthly average limits on 

effluent characteristics, including, but not limited to: metals and coal ash byproduct constituents, 

flow, pH, oil and grease, and total suspended solids (TSS). The NPDES Permit requires TVA to 

submit weekly and/or monthly discharge monitoring reports (DMRs) to provide monitoring 

results for the effluent characteristics to the Division. 

32. Any discharges from the GAF other than those specifically identified in the 

NPDES Permit and in the manner identified in the NPDES permit would result in a violation of 

the TWQCA and, in some cases, the NPDES Permit. 

33. As it does for the NRS, TVA maintains groundwater monitoring wells around the 

Ash Pond Complex. The wells gather data on potential groundwater contamination resulting 

from the entrance of constituents related to the treatment of coal combustion byproduct from the 

Ash Pond Complex into the area’s groundwater. 

34. | The geologic formation under and around the Ash Pond Complex is similarly, if 

not potentially more, porous than the geologic formation under and around the NRS, which, as 

detailed in {[{[ 21-25, has had reported exceedances of MCLs for the area’s groundwater. 
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35. In addition to groundwater monitoring, TVA, as a condition of the NPDES 

Permit, conducts inspections of the Ash Pond Complex for structural defects. Areas in the dikes 

where impounded wastewater may or is escaping from the Ash Pond Complex are generally 

referred to as “seeps.” 

36. The NPDES Permit requires TVA to conduct a daily inspection of the 

impoundments, maintain records of the impoundment inspections, take immediate corrective 

action once a potential compromise is discovered, and report within 24 hours the discovery of a 

change that indicates a potential compromise to the structural integrity of a dike or the 

impoundment. 

37. | TVA has reported to TDEC at least 10 seeps it is monitoring related to the Ash 

Pond Complex, each constituting a potential unpermitted discharge from the impoundment 

ponds, 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

NRS VIOLATIONS 

38. In accordance with the provisions of Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-104(1), it is 

unlawful to “place or deposit any solid waste into the waters of the state except in a manner 

approved by [TDEC].” 

39. “Solid waste” is defined in the SWDA as “spent material, byproducts, . . . ash, 

sludge, and all discarded material including solid, liquid, [or] semisolid. . . material resulting 

Jrom industrial, commercial, and agricultural operations.” Tenn. Code Ann § 68-211-103(8) 

(emphasis added). 
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40. Based on TVA’s submitted groundwater monitoring reports, and upon current 

information and belief, solid waste has been repeatedly discharged from the NRS into the 

groundwater in and around the GAF, as detailed in {J 19-25 above, in violation of the SWDA 

and its implementing rules and regulations. 

41. Additionally, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-104(3), it is unlawful to 

“construct, alter, or operate a solid waste processing or disposal facility or site in violation of the 

rules, regulations, or orders of the [C]ommissioner.” 

42. “Solid waste disposal” is defined in the SWDA as “the process of permanently or 

indefinitely placing, confining, compacting, or covering solid waste.’ Tenn. Code Ann § 68- 

211-103(9) (emphasis added). 

43. | The NRS meets the definition of a solid waste disposal site and based on TVA’s 

submitted groundwater monitoring reports and upon current information and belief, solid waste 

has been repeatedly discharged from the NRS into the groundwater in and around the GAF, as 

detailed in J] 19-25 above, in violation of the provisions of the SWDA and its implementing 

rules and regulations. 

44. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-115, this Court is authorized to 

issue a permanent injunction against TVA requiring it to comply with the provisions of the 

SWDA and the rules and regulations thereunder. 

45. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-117(a)(1), this Court may impose a 

civil penalty of up to $7,000 per day for each day any person violates the SWDA by failing to 

comply with the provisions of the SWDA and its implementing rules and regulations. 
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Additionally, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-117(2), each day such a violation continues 

is considered a separate violation. TVA is therefore subject to a civil penalty assessment of up to 

$7,000.00 per day for each day of such violation. 

46. Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. §69-3-114(a): 

it is unlawful for any person to discharge any substance into the waters of 

the state or to place or cause any substance to be placed in any location 

where such substances, either by themselves or in combination with 

others, cause any of the damages as defined in § 69-3-103, . . . unless such 

action has been properly authorized. 

47. Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-114(b), it is unlawful for any person to act in 

a manner or degree that is violative of the TWQCA, or any rule, regulation, or standard of water 

quality promulgated thereunder. 

48. Based on TVA’s submitted groundwater monitoring reports and upon current 

information and belief, as detailed in J§ 19-25 above, TVA has violated the provisions of the 

TWQCA and its implementing rules and regulations. 

49, In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-117, this Court is authorized to issue 

a permanent injunction against TVA requiring it to comply with the provisions of the TWQCA 

and the regulations thereunder. 

50. ‘In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 69-3-115(a)(1)(A) and (B) and § 69-3- 

115(a)(2)(D), this Court may impose a civil penalty of up to $10,000.00 per day for each day any 

person violates an effluent or water quality standard promulgated under the TWQCA or a permit 

condition. Additionally, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115(b), each day such a violation 
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occurs is considered a separate violation. TVA is therefore subject to a civil penalty assessment 

of up to $10,000.00 per day for each day of such violation. 

ASH POND COMPLEX VIOLATIONS   

51. As detailed in paragraphs {§ 26-37, through reported unpermitted discharges 

throughout the GAF’s Ash Pond Complex and based on current information and belief, TVA has 

violated § 69-3-114(a) and § 69-3-114(b), as set out in J] 46-47 above. 

52. Additionally, as a result of the unpermitted discharges, TVA has violated Part 

I1.A.4.a., titled Proper Operation and Maintenance, of the NPDES Permit issued pursuant to 

Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-108, which requires that: “[t]he permittee shall at all times properly 

operate and maintain all facilities and systems (and related appurtenances) for collection and 

treatment which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the terms and 

conditions of the permit.” 

53. | Based upon current information and belief, TVA has also violated Part H.C.1. of 

the NPDES Permit, which requires that all discharges be consistent with the terms and conditions 

of the permit. 

54. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-117, this Court is authorized to issue 

a permanent injunction against TVA requiring it to comply with the provisions of the TWQCA, 

the regulations thereunder, and the conditions of all NPDES permits issued to TVA pursuant to 

Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-108. 

55. In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 69-3-115(a)(1)(A) and (B) and § 69-3- 

115(a)(2)(D), this Court may impose a civil penalty of up to $10,000.00 per day for each day any 
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person violates an effluent or water quality standard promulgated under the TWQCA or a permit 

condition. Additionally, pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115(b), each day such a violation 

occurs is considered a separate violation. TVA is therefore subject to a civil penalty assessment 

of up to $10,000.00 per day for each day of such violation. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the plaintiffs respectfully request the following relief: 

A. That this complaint be filed without cost bond, as provided by Tenn. Code Ann. § 

20-13-101, and that process issue and be served upon the defendant requiring it to appear and 

answer this Complaint; 

B. That upon a trial or final hearing in this matter, the Court issue a permanent 

injunction against the defendant, in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-115, § 69-3-117,     

and, as applicable, Tenn. R. Civ. P. 65, requiring TVA and its successors, assigns, officers, 

agents, servants, attorneys, and any other person or entity in active concert or participation with 

TVA, to comply with, and enjoining it from further violations of, the provisions of the SWDA, 

the TWQCA, and the rules promulgated thereunder, as well as the current and any future NPDES 

permit issued to TVA in the State of Tennessee. This request for extraordinary relief is 

plaintiffs’ first application for such process; 

C. That upon a trial or final hearing in this matter, the Court enter judgment for the 

plaintiffs against the defendant and assess civil penalties in an amount not to exceed $7,000.00 

per day for each violation, in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 68-211-117, against the 

defendant for violations of the SWDA and the regulations promulgated thereunder; 
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D. That upon a trial or final hearing in this matter, the Court enter judgment for the 

plaintiffs against the defendant and assess civil penalties in an amount not to exceed $10,000.00 

per day for each violation, in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115, against the 

defendant for violations of the TWQCA and the regulations promulgated thereunder; 

E. That this Court assess post-judgment interest against the defendant in accordance 

with Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 47-14-121 and 47-14-122 until the judgment against the defendant is 

paid in full, for which execution may issue if necessary; 

F, That all costs in this cause be taxed to the defendant; and 

G. That the Court award the plaintiffs such other general and equitable relief as the 

Court deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Hs SbnF 
HERBERT H. SLATERY II, BPR No. 009077 
Attorney General and eae, 
State of Tennessee 

        
NN, BPR No. 026642 

Assistant Attorney General 
Environmental Division 

Office of the Attorney General and Reporter 

P.O. Box 20207 

Nashville, Tennessee 37202-0207 
(615) 532-2583 
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EXHIBIT 1



IN THE CHANCERY COURT FOR THE STATE OF TENNESSEE 
TWENTIETH JUDICIAL DISTRICT, DAVIDSON COUNTY 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ex rel. HERBERT 

H. SLATERY IIL, in his official capacity as the 

Attorney General and Reporter of Tennessee 
and ROBERT J. MARTINEAU, JR., 

Commissioner of the Tennessee Department 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

of Environment and Conservation, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) 
Vv. ) No. 

) 
TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTHORITY, ) 

) 
) Defendant. 

  

VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT 

  

STATE OF TENNESSEE _ ) 

COUNTY OF DAVIDSON ; 

I, Christopher S. Moran, being duly sworn, do hereby depose and, upon personal 

knowledge, state as follows: 

1. I am employed with the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 

(TDEC) as the Department’s Civil Enforcement Coordinator. I have been employed with TDEC 

since 1994 and have acted as the Civil Enforcement Coordinator since 2006. 

2. As part of my job responsibilities, I provide technical support to the enforcement 

sections within TDEC, develop uniform policy and guidance on enforcement related matters, 

review draft administrative orders, including penalty calculations, and serve as the custodian of 

records for department enforcement matters.



3. I am familiar with the facts giving rise to this lawsuit. I have read the allegations 

contained in the foregoing complaint and believe the allegations concerning violations of the 

Tennessee Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA), the Tennessee Water Quality Control Act of 1977 

(TWQCA), and NPDES Permit No. TN0005428 to be true to the best of my knowledge, 

information, and belief. 

4, Based on my experience, the information obtained by TDEC in the course of its 

investigation of the TVA Gallatin Fossil Plant located in Sumner County, Tennessee, and the 

alleged current and ongoing violations of the SWDA, the TWQCA, and NPDES Permit No. 

TN0005428, the public interest requires that this action be commenced. 

FURTHER THE AFFIANT SAITH NOT. 

  

CHRISTOPHER S. MORAN 

Sworn to and subscribed before me 

this day of , 2015 

  

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:


